White Salmon Planning Commission Meeting A G E N D A



Meeting ID: 890 1615 9730 Passcode: 498440



669-900-6833 929-205-6099 301-715-8592 346-248-7799 253-215-8782 312-626-6799

We ask that the audience call in instead of videoing in or turn off your camera, so video does not show during the meeting to prevent disruption.

Thank you.

Call to Order/Roll Call

Approval of Minutes

- 1. Approval of Meeting Minutes September 23, 2020
- 2. Approval of Meeting Minutes October 14, 2020

Action Items

- <u>3.</u> Proposed Amendments to WSMC 17.78 Wireless Telecommunication Towers and Facilities
 - a. Presentation
 - b. Public Hearing

Written comments may be submitted to erikac@ci.white-salmon.wa.us by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 28 noting in the subject line "Public Hearing – Amendments to WSMC 17.78." All written comments will be read during the public hearing. In addition, any individual who wishes to testify via the teleconference will be allowed to do so. You must register with the city (by contacting Erika Castro Guzman at erikac@ci.white-salmon.wa.us by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 28) that you desire to testify via teleconference and provide your name and/or phone number as it will appear during the Zoom teleconference.

c. Discussion and Action

<u>Adjournment</u>

File Attachments for Item:

Approval of Meeting Minutes - September 23, 2020



CITY OF WHITE SALMON

Planning Commission Meeting - Wednesday, September 23, 2020 DRAFT

COMMISSION AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL PRESENT

Commission Members:

Ross Henry, Chairman Michael Morneault

Tom Stevenson Greg Hohensee

Seth Gilchrist

Staff Present:

Erika Castro Guzman, City Associate Planner

Jan Brending, City Clerk-Treasurer

Bill Hunsaker, Fire Chief/ Code Enforcement

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL

Ross Henry, Chairman called the meeting to order at 5:35 PM. There was approximately 1 person attending by teleconference. A quorum of planning commissioner members was present.

PUBLIC COMMENT

One public comment was read regarding the Short-term Rental Policy discussion by Mark Sanborn and Sandra Linnerud, White Salmon, WA.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approval of the minutes of June 10, 2020.

Moved by Michael Morneault. Seconded by Tom Stevenson.

Discussion: None

Motion to approve meeting minutes, as is, of June 10, 2020. CARRIED 5–0.

ACTION ITEMS

White Salmon Urbanization Study, July 2020

Jan Brending, Clerk-Treasurer presented the White Salmon Urbanization Study for final review and adoption. She reminded the Commissioners that this document is a planning tool, not an element in the Comprehensive Plan, therefore does not set policy but does have recommendations from the consultants.

The Planning Commission recommended the following updates:

- Check page numbers. The document renumbers after the original page 7 (end of Section II. Buildable Land Inventory.
- 2. Instead of using bullets, please use numbers or letters respectively. It makes it easier for individuals to reference a specific line.
- 3. Section II. Buildable Land Inventory
 - a. Make sure the residential land use base organization information is correct, specifically how many dwelling units per acre. Is this based on county or city zoning or both?
 - b. Was the Draft BLI findings and results reviewed by the public?

4. Section III. Economic Overview

a. Page 12, after Exhibit 3.2, the first paragraph states "Within the City of White Salmon..." however, there are other areas in the report that the word "Within the White Salmon area" is used. A question was raised about consistency and making sure that the data provided matches the appropriate wording, i.e. is the data for the City of White Salmon (city limits) or is the data for the White salmon area? This should be checked throughout the document.

5. Section IV. Housing Needs

- a. Urbanization Requirements
 - The third paragraph, last sentence the work "dimish" should be "diminish."
 - Add a paragraph about annexation (from areas within the White Salmon Urban Exempt Area) into the city limits that can help address growing demand, i.e. SR and R1 (county zoning) could be rezoned when annexed to medium density.
- 6. Section IV.E. Findings and Policy Considerations
 - a. Under "City of White Salmon," first bullet, last sentence should read "Criteria for rezoning could include availability of water/sewer, access and proximity to services, schools and commercial uses and maintaining village feel."
 - b. Under "City of White Salmon" move bullets 4 6 before the first three bullets.
 - c. Under "City of White Salmon", bullet #5 should read "Consider revisions to the residential standards to mitigate barriers, including changes to building setbacks, heights, coverage requirements and minimum lot sizes while maintaining village feel."
 - d. Under "City of White Salmon", bullet #6 the first part of the sentence should be bolded to match other formatting.
 - e. Under "Klickitat County", paragraph after bullets should read: "These and other policy considerations will be discussed and refined based on input from the City of White Salmon and local community stake holders and a balanced cross-section of residents, including long-term residents, through the Comprehensive Plan Update process."

Moved by Tom Stevenson. Seconded by Seth Gilchrist.

Discussion: None

Motion to accept White Salmon Urbanization Study, July 2020, with recommended changes. CARRIED 5—0.

Proposed Amendments to WSMC 17.78 – Wireless Telecommunications Towers and Facilities

Jan Brending, Clerk-Treasurer, presented the proposed amendments to WSMC 17.78 by the City Operations Committee. All proposed changes are to be incorporated prior to the public hearing and used as the basis for obtaining comments at a future Planning Commission meeting prior to its recommendation to the City Council for adoption of the amendments.

The Planning Commission recommended the following changes to the proposed amendments:

- WSMC 17.78.025: B.1.c, incorporate language from D -11.
- WSMC 17.78.025 B.1.e should read "An affidavit shall be submitted attesting to the fact that the applicant made diligent efforts to obtain permission to install or co-locate the proposed

telecommunications facilities on existing towers or antenna support structures within line of site from the proposed service area, but, due to physical, economic, or technological constraints, no such existing tower or antenna support structure is available or feasible.

- WSMC 17.78.025 D.5. should read "An affidavit shall be submitted attesting to the fact that the
 applicant made diligent efforts to obtain permission to install or co-located the proposed
 telecommunications facilities on existing towers or antenna support structures located within
 line of site from the proposed service area, but, due to physical, economic, or technological
 constraints, no such existing tower or antenna support structure is available or feasible."
- WSMC 17.78,050 Illumination: add a sentence that states all facility shall be dark-sky compliant as required by White Salmon Municipal Code.
- WSMC 17.78.070, split this section into two: (1) Modifications using existing language to be reviewed at the planning department level and (2) Demolition and rebuilding of existing towers that must comply with the requirements of the chapter and are reviewed by the planning commission.

Moved by Tom Stevenson. Seconded by Greg Hohensee.

Discussion: None

Motion to schedule public hearing on proposed amendments to WSMC 17.78 – Wireless Telecommunications Towers and Facilities, with changes as noted, on Wednesday, October 14, 2020. CARRIED 5–0.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Short-term Rental Policy Discussion

The Planning Commission held a discussion regarding short-term rentals to provide broad guidance to be used towards the development of goals and policies regarding short-term rentals.

The Planning Commission and staff identified the following topics for further discussion:

- Research and dissect similar city's short-term rental ordinances and make comment as to what would like to be seen in White Salmon City Code.
- Communicate with the community, especially within the White Salmon's R-1 neighborhoods for their insight of STRs and ADUs.
- Affordability in White Salmon.
- Staff to share STR data (if possible).
- Should short-term rentals be allowed.
- How are short-term rentals classified, i.e. "residential" or "commercial."
- Where should short-term rentals be allowed; what zones should short-term rentals be allowed; if classified "residential" are short-term rentals allowed in commercial zones or possible with a conditional use permit or if classified "commercial" are short-term rentals allowed in residential zones or possibly with a conditional use permit.
- Should there be a limit on the number of short-term rentals

<u>Update on Comprehensive Plan</u>

Jan Brending, Clerk-treasurer, provided an update to the Planning Commission on the Comprehensive Plan status. She said that the consultant has informed the city of some budget overruns. The City is looking to resolve it for the issues soon so the Planning Commission to continue policy discussion and reviewing elements. Staff is also seeking to sign the transportation and park plans contracts in October.

ADJOURNMENT

City of White Salmon Planning Commission Minutes – September 23	3, 2020
The meeting was adjourned at 7:45 p.m.	
Ross Henry, Chairman	Erika Castro Guzman, Associate Planner

File Attachments for Item:

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes - October 14, 2020



CITY OF WHITE SALMON Planning Commission Meeting - Wednesday, October 14, 2020 DRAFT

COMMISSION AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL PRESENT

Commission Members:

Staff Present:

Ross Henry, Chairman Michael Morneault Tom Stevenson Greg Hohensee Erika Castro Guzman, City Associate Planner Jan Brending, City Clerk-Treasurer

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL

Seth Gilchrist

Ross Henry, Chairman called the meeting to order at 5:35 PM. There was no audience attending via teleconference. A quorum of planning commissioner members was present.

PUBLIC COMMENT

One public comment was read regarding the Short-term Rental Policy discussion by Shane and Nicki Phelps, White Salmon, WA.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Short-term Rental Policy

The Planning Commission held a discussion regarding short-term rentals to provide broad guidance to be used towards the development of goals and polices regarding short-term rentals.

The Planning Commission provided the following comments:

- Allow short-term rentals with possible limits to the number of short-term rentals
- Keep regulation and guidance simple so that enforcement is not a burden on limited city staff
- Should short-term rentals be an outright use in all zones or require a conditional use permit in some
- Address parking
- Make sure short-term rentals do not detract from the neighborhood
- Identify different types of short-term rentals, i.e. renting out one or two rooms, renting out an entire house when the home owner is not present, or renting out an accessory dwelling unit while living in the main home, or the investor who does not live on the property at all and is renting short-term rentals as full business
- Must meet health, safety and building codes
- Short-term rentals can be a source of income to the city through sales tax revenue

Planning commissioners suggested to talking to a broad range of people to get input on short-term rentals.

|--|

Erika Castro Guzman, Associate Planner

File Attachments for Item:

- 3. Proposed Amendments to WSMC 17.78 Wireless Telecommunication Towers and Facilities
- a. Presentation
- b. Public HearingWritten comments may be submitted to erikac@ci.white-salmon.wa.us by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 28 noting in the subject line "Public Hearing Amendments to WSMC 17.78." All written comments will be read during the public hearing. In addition, any individual who wishes to testify via the teleconference will be allowed to do so. You must register with the city (by contacting Jan Brending at erikac@ci.white-salmon.wa.us by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 28) that you desire to testify via teleconference and provide your name and/or phone number as it will appear during the Zoom teleconference.
- c. Discussion and Action



AGENDA MEMO

Needs Legal Review:

No

Planning Commission Meeting Date:

October 28, 2020

Agenda Item: Proposed Amendments to WSMC 17.78 Wireless Telecommunications

Towers and Facilities

Action Required

After public hearing move to recommend that the City Council adopt the proposed amendments as presented or with any agreed upon changes

Motion

Motion to recommend to the City Council that the proposed amendments to WSMC 17.78 Wireless Telecommunications Towers and Facilities be adopted as presented (or as amended).

Explanation of Issue

The proposed amendments to White Salmon Municipal Code 17.78 Wireless Telecommunications Towers and Facilities include the changes made by the Planning Commission at their September 23 meeting.

A public hearing is required to be held by the Planning Commission prior to making recommendations regarding the proposed amendments to the City Council. Written testimony and testimony during the teleconference will be allowed. Written testimony (public comment) must be submitted to Erika Castro-Guzman by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 28, 2020. Anyone wishing to testify during the teleconference must register prior to the meeting so that we can identify the participant during the teleconference meeting.

After the public hearing, the Planning Commission will discuss the proposed amendments and make a recommendation to the City Council regarding adoption of the proposed amendments as presented or amended by the Planning Commission.

The public hearing was noticed in the September 21, 2020 edition of the Columbia Gorge News, posted on the city's website and posted at City Hall, the Fire Hall and the Post Office.

CITY OF WHITE SALMON WASHINGTON ORDINANCE NO. 2020-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING WHITE SALMON MUNICIPAL CODE 17.78 WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWERS AND FACILITIES AND SETTING EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of White Salmon finds that amendments are necessary to ensure the health and safety of City residents; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of White Salmon do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. White Salmon Municipal Code (WSMC) Chapter 17.78 Wireless Telecommunications Towers and Facilities is hereby amended as follows:

Key: **Bold and Strike though** means repealed. **Bold and underline** means new

Chapter 17.78 – Wireless Telecommunications Towers and Facilities

Sections:

17.78.010 - Findings.

- A. The Communications Act of 1934 as amended by the Telecommunication Act of 1996 ("the Act") grants the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) exclusive jurisdiction over:
 - 1. The regulation of the environmental effects of radio frequency (RF) emissions from telecommunications facilities; and
 - 2. The regulation of radio signal interference among users of the RF spectrum.
- B. The city's regulation of wireless telecommunications towers and facilities in the city will not have the effect of prohibiting any person from providing wireless telecommunications services in violation of the Act.

17.78.015 - Purposes.

- A. The general purpose of this chapter is to regulate the placement, construction, and modification of wireless telecommunications towers and facilities in order to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public, while at the same time encouraging the development of the competitive wireless telecommunications marketplace in the city.
- B. The specific purposes of this chapter are:

- 1. To allow the location of wireless telecommunication towers and facilities in the city;
- 2. To protect residential zones and visually sensitive areas from potential adverse impact of towers and telecommunications facilities;
- 3. To minimize adverse visual impact of towers and telecommunications facilities through careful design, siting, landscaping, and innovative camouflaging techniques;
- 4. To promote and encourage shared use/co-location of towers and antenna support structures as a primary option rather than construction of additional single-use towers;
- 5. To promote and encourage utilization of technological designs that will eliminate or reduce the need for erection of new tower structures to support antenna and telecommunications facilities;
- 6. To avoid potential damage to property caused by towers and telecommunications facilities by ensuring such structures are soundly and carefully designed, constructed, modified, maintained, and removed when no longer used or are determined to be structurally unsound;
- 7. To ensure that towers and telecommunications facilities are compatible with surrounding land uses; and
- 8. To overcome the potential adverse impacts that poorly or unregulated telecommunications facilities could have on the public health, safety and welfare.

17.78.020 - Exemptions.

The following shall be considered exempt structures or activities under this chapter:

- A. Parabolic or other similar antenna 39.37 inches (one meter) diameter or less regardless of zone;
- B. Parabolic or other similar antennas 78.74 inches (two meters) in diameter or less located in nonresidential zones;
- C. Panel, wave, or other similar antennas ten square feet or less regardless of zone;
- D. Whip or other similar antennas six feet in height and up to two inches in diameter;
- E. Antennas designed to receive local television broadcast signals regardless of zone category;

Ordinance 2020 Amending WSMC 17.78 Wireless Telecommunications Towers and Facilities Page 2

- F. Low-powered networked telecommunications facilities such as microcell radio transceivers located on existing utility poles and light standards within public right-of-way. Low-powered, networked telecommunications facilities shall comply with Chapter 17.78 WSMC;
- G. Industrial, scientific and medical equipment using frequencies regulated by the FCC;
- H. Military, federal, state and local government communication towers used for navigational purposes, emergency preparedness, and public safety purposes;
- I. Normal, routine, and emergency maintenance and repair of existing wireless communication facilities and related equipment which do not increase the size, footprint, or bulk of such facilities and which otherwise comply with city, state, and federal law and regulations;
- J. Cell on wheels (COW), which are permitted as temporary testing uses in nonresidential areas of the city for a period not to exceed thirty days, or in residential areas for a period not to exceed one day, or during a period of emergency as declared by the city.

17.78.025 - Development of towers.

- A. Towers may be located in any zone with approval of an unclassified use permit (UUP). Co-location shall be given first priority and may be required. The use of public properties shall be subject to approval by the city and the city's determination that the public's intended use of the site will not be unreasonably hindered. Application for an UUP shall be made to the planning director in the manner provided in this chapter. An application to locate a new tower shall be accompanied by technical information identifying and documenting the need for such a location per subsection C of this section.
- B. Any tower proposed to be on public property owned by the City of White Salmon related to establishing a ground lease option shall be approved by the City Council for submission of an application to the planning commission.
 - 1. Information to be included with a request for a ground lease option shall include the following information:
 - a. Name, address and telephone number of the lessee of the parcel of land upon which the proposed tower is to be situated.
 - b. A site plan showing the location of the proposed tower and any supporting facilities.
 - c. A description of the type of tower including color photo simulations showing the proposed site with a photo realistic representation of the

proposed tower and telecommunications facilities as it would appear viewed from the closest residential property and from adjacent roadways.

- d. The height of the tower.
- e. Where the tower connects to or relies on existing public facilities, such as mounting the tower on a city reservoir, the applicant shall provide preliminary engineering of the suitability and impacts of the proposed project on the city facilities.
- f. An affidavit shall be submitted attesting to the fact that the applicant made diligent efforts to obtain permission to install or co-located the proposed telecommunications facilities on existing towers or antenna support structures within line of site from the proposed service area, but, due to physical, economic, or technological constraints detailed in the affidavit, no such existing tower or antenna support structure is available or feasible.
- **BC.** Towers may not exceed the maximum height allowed for structures in any residential, local commercial or general commercial zone. In industrial, public, and riverfront planned district zones, towers shall be permitted to a height of sixty feet. Towers may be permitted in excess of the stated height limit to a maximum height of one hundred twenty feet only in accordance with a modification approved per Section 17.78.085 WSMC and subject to all conditions of approval applied through that process.
- CD. An application to develop a new tower shall be by UUP and shall include the following information:
 - 1. The name, address, and telephone number of the owner and lessee of the parcel of land upon which the proposed tower is to be situated. If the applicant is not the owner of the parcel of land upon which the proposed tower is to be situated, the written consent of the owner shall be evidenced in the application. If the applicant is not the owner of the property, a copy of the preliminary lease agreement is required to be provided with the application. A copy of the final agreement shall be submitted prior to issuance of a building permit for the structure;
 - 2. The legal description, parcel number, and address of the parcel of land upon which the proposed tower is to be situated;
 - 3. The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of all owners of other towers or antenna support structures, capable of supporting the applicant's telecommunications facilities, within three hundred feet of the proposed tower site, including city-owned property;

- 4. A description of the design plan proposed by the applicant in the city. Applicant must identify whether or not it is utilizing the most compact, or least obtrusive, technological design, including microcell design, as part of the design plan. The applicant must demonstrate the need for the proposed tower and why design alternatives, such as the use of microcell, cannot be utilized to accomplish the provision of the applicant's telecommunications services;
- 5. An affidavit shall be submitted attesting to the fact that the applicant made diligent efforts to obtain permission to install or co-locate the proposed telecommunications facilities on existing towers or antenna support structures located within a one-half mile radius of the proposed tower site line of site from the proposed service area, but, due to physical, economic, or technological constraints, no such existing tower or antenna support structure is available or feasible.
- 6. A written statement by the applicant that the tower will accommodate co-location of additional antennas for future users at a reasonable, market-based cost. If accommodation of future co-location is not proposed, information must be submitted with the application detailing why future co-location is not possible;
- 7. Written technical evidence from an engineer(s) of the tower's capability of supporting additional telecommunications facilities comparable in weight, size, and surface area to the telecommunications facilities installed by the applicant on the proposed tower;
- 8. A written statement from an engineer(s) that the construction and placement of the proposed tower and telecommunications facilities will not interfere with public safety communications and the usual and customary transmission or reception of radio, television, or other communications services enjoyed by adjacent residential and nonresidential properties;
- 9. It shall be a condition of the UUP approval that certification by the applicant will meet the standards set forth in Section 17.78.035, "Structural requirements";
- 10. A written statement by the applicant stating the tower and telecommunications facilities will comply with all FAA regulations and EIA standards and all other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations;
- 11. In order to assist the planning director and planning commission in evaluating visual impact, the applicant shall submit color photo simulations showing the proposed site with a photo realistic representation of the proposed tower and telecommunications facilities as it would appear viewed from the closest residential property and from adjacent roadways;

- 12. The city may require a qualified, independent third party review (by a city-approved consultant) to validate and review the technical information contained in the application submittals. The cost of such review shall be borne by the applicant;
- 13. The Act gives the FCC sole jurisdiction of the regulation of RF emissions and does not allow the city to condition or deny on the basis of RF impacts the approval of any telecommunications facilities (whether mounted on towers or antenna support structures) which meet FCC standards. In order to provide information to its citizens, the applicant may be required to provide copies of ongoing FCC information and RF emission standards for telecommunications facilities transmitting from towers or antenna support structures to the city for inclusion in the public record. The city shall make this type of information available to the public upon request. Applicants shall be required to submit information on the proposed power density of their proposed telecommunications facilities and demonstrate how this meets FCC standards;
- 14. At the time of site selection, the applicant shall demonstrate how the proposed site fits into its overall telecommunications network within the city. This shall include a service area coverage chart for the proposed tower and telecommunications facilities that depicts the extent of coverage and corresponding signal quality at the proposed tower height and at least one height lower than that proposed;
- 15. Construction schedule and completion date shall be provided to the city. Performance in accordance with the proposed construction schedule and completion date shall be required by condition of approval. When compliance with construction schedule is required, the applicant will be allowed to request extension of the construction schedule. City review of the extension request will include consideration of continued construction impacts on transportation patterns and surrounding land uses;
- 16. Copies of any environmental documents required by any federal, state, or local agency. These shall include the environmental assessment required by FCC Para. 1.1307, or, in the event that a FCC environmental assessment is not required, a statement that describes the specific factors that obviate the requirement for an environmental assessment;
- 17. A full site plan shall be required for all towers, showing the location, the specific placement of the tower on the site, the type and height of the proposed tower, onsite land uses and zoning, adjacent land uses and zoning, adjacent roadways, proposed means of access, setbacks from property lines, elevation drawings of the proposed facility, the location of existing structures, trees, and other significant site features, the type and location of plant materials used to screen the facility, fencing, proposed color(s), and any other proposed structures;

- 18. Applicants for new communications towers shall contact all law enforcement, fire, and other public safety and emergency services agencies within the city prior to application submittal to determine whether or not the agencies are interested in co-location and, if so, what the agencies specifications are. If any such agency decides to co-locate, then any new towers approved under this chapter shall be designed for, and the owner shall not deny, co-location.
- **DE**. The city shall review applications in a prompt manner and all decisions shall be made in writing and setting forth the reasons for approval or denial.
- **E**<u>F</u>. Decisions on UUPs require a public hearing. The public hearing shall be conducted before the planning commission following which the planning commission shall render a decision supported by findings of fact and conclusions of law. Appeal of the planning commission's decision must be submitted within fourteen days to the planning department by the city council a hearing examiner.

17.78.030 - Setbacks.

- A. Setback requirements for towers shall be measured from the base of the tower to the property line of the parcel of land on which it is located.
- B. Setback requirements may be modified, as provided in Section 17.78.085 WSMC, when placement of a tower in a location which will reduce the visual impact can be accomplished. For example, adjacent to trees, which may visually hide the tower.
- C. Unless exempt from Section 17.78.020 WSMC, telecommunications facilities shall be set back at least twenty-five feet from each lot line. The planning commission may grant a waiver of up to twenty-five percent of the setback requirement if it is determined that significant trees and other vegetation will be retained by reducing the setback.
- D. Towers in excess of the height allowed in each base zone per Section 17.78.025(B) and having received approval of a request for modification of development standards per Section 17.78.085; shall be set back one additional foot per each foot of tower height in excess of the tower height allowed in the base zone without a modification of development standards.

17.78.035 - Structural requirements.

It shall be a condition of the UUP that all towers must be designed and certified by an engineer to be structurally sound and, at a minimum, in conformance with the building code and any other standards set forth in this chapter. All towers shall be fixed to land. 17.78.040 - Separation or buffer requirements.

For the purpose of this section, the separation distances between towers shall be measured by drawing or following a straight line between the base of the existing or approved

structure and the proposed base, pursuant to a site plan of the proposed tower. The minimum tower separation distances from residentially zoned land and from other towers shall be calculated and applied irrespective of city jurisdictional boundaries.

- A. Proposed towers must meet the following minimum separation requirements from existing towers or towers which have a development permit but are not yet constructed at the time a development permit is granted pursuant to the zoning code:
 - 1. Monopole tower structures shall be separated from other telecommunications towers by a minimum of seven hundred fifty feet.
 - 2. Self-supporting or lattice tower structures shall be separated from other telecommunications towers by a minimum of one thousand five hundred feet.
- B. Tower separation distances from any property that is zoned residential shall be set back one foot for each foot of tower height.
- C. Separation or buffer requirements may be modified as provided in Section 17.78.085 WSMC.

17.78.045 - Method of determining tower height.

Measurement of tower height for the purpose of determining compliance with all requirements of this section shall include the tower structure itself, the base pad, and any other telecommunications facilities attached thereto. Tower height shall be measured from average pre-construction grade.

17.78.050 - Illumination.

Towers shall not be artificially lighted except as specified by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). If lighting is demonstrated to be required by the FAA as the only means to achieve compliance with FAA safety standards, dual mode lighting shall be requested from the FAA. All facility (other than towers) lighting shall be dark-sky compliant as required by the City of White Salmon Municipal Code.

17.78.055 - Exterior finish.

Towers not requiring FAA painting or marking shall have an exterior finish which enhances compatibility with adjacent land uses, as approved by the planning commission.

17.78.060 - Landscaping/stealth design.

All landscaping on a parcel of land containing towers, antenna support structures, or telecommunications facilities shall be in accordance with the applicable landscaping requirements in the zoning district where the tower, antenna support structure, or

Ordinance 2020 Amending WSMC 17.78 Wireless Telecommunications Towers and Facilities Page 8 telecommunications facilities are located. The city may require on-site landscaping in excess of the requirements in the zoning code in order to enhance compatibility with adjacent land uses. Tower development shall preserve the pre-existing character of the site as much as possible. Towers and accessory equipment structures (equipment shelters and cabinets) shall be integrated through location, design, and color to blend in with the existing site characteristics to the extent practical. Existing vegetation around the facility shall be preserved to the extent possible or improved upon to provide vegetative screening.

The perimeter of a wireless communication support structure shall be enclosed by a fence or wall at least six feet in height. Evergreen trees shall be planted surrounding the support structure in a manner approved by the city. In any residential, local commercial, or general commercial zone, the monopole or lattice tower must be screened by existing vegetation when possible. Additional screening may be required to mitigate visual impacts to adjacent properties or public rights-of-way as determined by site-specific conditions. Ground equipment may be required to be located within a structure and the structure may be required to contain design elements (e.g., wood or wood look siding, pitched roof and overhangs) as deemed necessary to ensure compatibility between ground equipment and the surrounding neighborhood.

17.78.065 - Telecommunications facilities on towers and antenna support structures.

Telecommunications facilities may be permitted on any tower or antenna support structure. Application for a conditional use permit shall be made to the planning director in the manner provided in this chapter for telecommunications facilities that are not exempt per Section 17.78.020 WSMC. The applicant shall, by written certification to the planning department, establish the following at the time plans are submitted for a building permit:

- A. A conditional use permit application to develop telecommunications facilities shall include the following:
 - 1. The name, address, and telephone number of the owner and lessee of the parcel of land upon which the tower or antenna support structure is situated. If the applicant is not the owner of the parcel of land upon which the tower or antenna support structure is situated, the written consent of the owner shall be evidenced in the application;
 - 2. The legal description, parcel number, and address of the parcel of land upon which the tower or antenna support structure is situated;
 - 3. A description of the design plan proposed by the applicant. The applicant must identify whether or not it is utilizing the most compact, or least obtrusive, technological design, including microcell design, as part of the design plan;
 - 4. A written statement from an engineer(s) that the construction and placement of the telecommunications facilities will not interfere with public safety communications and the usual and customary transmission or reception of radio,

- television, or other communications services enjoyed by adjacent residential and nonresidential properties;
- 5. It shall be a condition of any conditional use permit approval that the applicant shall provide certification that the proposed structure will meet the standards set forth in Section 17.78.035 WSMC;
- 6. A written statement by the applicant stating the telecommunications facilities will comply with all FAA regulations and EIA standards and all other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations;
- 7. In order to assist the planning director and planning commission in evaluating visual impact, the applicant shall submit color photo-simulations showing the tower or antenna support structure with a photo-realistic representation of the proposed telecommunications facilities, as it would appear viewed from the closest residential property and from adjacent roadways;
- 8. At the request of the planning director, the city may require a qualified, independent third-party review (by a city-approved consultant) to validate and review the technical information contained in the application submittals. The cost of such review shall be borne by the applicant;
- 9. The Act gives the FCC sole jurisdiction of the regulation of RF emissions and does not allow the city to condition or deny on the basis of RF impacts the approval of any telecommunications facilities (whether mounted on towers or antenna support structures) which meet FCC standards. In order to provide information to its citizens, the applicant may be required to provide copies of ongoing FCC information and RF emission standards for telecommunications facilities transmitting from towers or antenna support structures to the city for inclusion in the public record. The city shall make this type of information available to the public upon request. Applicants shall be required to submit information on the proposed power density of their proposed telecommunications facilities and demonstrate how this meets FCC standards;
- 10. Construction schedule and completion date shall be provided to the city. Performance in accordance with the proposed construction schedule and completion date shall be required by condition of approval. When compliance with construction schedule is required, the applicant will be allowed to request extension of the construction schedule. City review of the extension request will include consideration of continued construction impacts on transportation patterns and surrounding land uses;
- 11. Copies of any environmental documents required by any federal agency, if available. These shall include the environmental assessment required by FCC Para. 1.1307, or, in the event that a FCC environmental assessment is not

- required, a statement that describes the specific factors that obviate the requirement for an environmental assessment;
- 12. A full site plan shall be required for all sites, showing the location, the specific placement, type and height of the proposed telecommunications facilities, on-site land uses and zoning, adjacent land uses and zoning, adjacent roadways, proposed means of access, setbacks from property lines, elevation drawings of the proposed telecommunications facilities, the location of existing towers and antenna support structures, trees, and other significant site features, the type and location of plant materials used to screen the facility, fencing, proposed color(s), and any other proposed structures.
- B. Telecommunications facilities that are not appurtenant structures and that are located above the top of the antenna support structure shall be appropriately screened from view through the use of panels, walls, fences, setbacks from the edge of the antenna support structure or other screening techniques approved by the city. Screening requirements shall not apply to stealth antennas that are mounted below the top of the antenna support structure but which do not protrude more than eighteen inches from the side of such an antenna support structure.

17.78.070 - Modification of existing towers.

- A. A tower existing prior to the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter, which was in compliance with the city's zoning regulations immediately prior to the effective date of the ordinance, may continue in existence as a nonconforming structure. Such nonconforming structures may be modified or demolished and rebuilt without complying with any of the additional requirements of this chapter, except for Sections 17.78.040(B) (requiring that existing legal nonconforming facilities be considered when siting of new facilities is reviewed), 17.78.075, and 17.78.080 WSMC, provided that:
 - 1. The tower is being modified or demolished and rebuilt for the sole purpose of accommodating, within six months of the completion of the modification or rebuild, additional telecommunications facilities comparable in size to the discrete operating telecommunications facilities of any person currently installed on the tower and with a surface area not to exceed the previous facilities.
 - 2. An application for a development permit is made to the planning department which shall have the authority to issue a development permit without further approval. The grant of a development permit pursuant to this section allowing the modification or demolition and rebuild of an existing nonconforming tower shall not be consider a determination that the modified or demolished and rebuilt tower is conforming.
 - 3. The height of the modified **or rebuilt** tower and telecommunications facilities attached thereto does not exceed the existing height of the tower and facilities as

of the date of the ordinance codified in this chapter or as hereinafter amended, whichever is higher.

B. Except as provided in this section, a nonconforming structure or use may not be enlarged, increased in size. A nonconforming structure or use may not be discontinued in use for a period of more than one hundred eighty days without being brought into compliance with this chapter. This chapter shall not be interpreted to legalize any structure or use existing at the time the ordinance codified in this chapter is adopted which structure or use is in violation of the zoning code prior to enactment of this chapter.

<u>17.78.073 – Demolition and rebuilding of existing towers.</u>

Towers that are proposed to be demolished and rebuilt shall comply with all sections in this chapter, as if a new tower is being constructed.

17.78.075 - Certification and inspections.

- A. All towers shall be certified by an engineer to be structurally sound and in conformance with the requirements of the building code and all other construction standards set forth by the White Salmon Municipal Code and federal and state law including FCC and National Electric Safety Code regulations. For new towers, such certification shall be submitted with an application pursuant to Section 17.78.025 "Development of towers" of this chapter.
- B. The city or its agents shall have authority to enter onto the property upon which a tower is located, to inspect the tower for the purpose of determining whether it complies with the building code and all other construction standards provided by the White Salmon Municipal Code and federal and state law.
- C. The city reserves the right to conduct such inspections at any time, upon reasonable notice to the tower owner. In the event such inspection results in a determination that violation of applicable construction and maintenance standards, set forth by the White Salmon Municipal Code has occurred, remedy of the violation may include cost recovery for all costs incurred in confirming and processing the violation.

17.78.080 - Maintenance.

- A. Tower owners shall at all times employ ordinary and reasonable care and shall install and maintain in use nothing less than commonly accepted methods and devices for preventing failures and accidents which are likely to cause damage, injuries, or nuisances to the public.
- B. Tower owners shall install and maintain towers, telecommunications facilities, wires, cables, fixtures, and other equipment in substantial compliance with the requirements of the National Electric Safety Code and all FCC, state, and local regulations, and in such manner that will not interfere with the use of other property.

- C. All towers, telecommunications facilities, and antenna support structures shall at all times be kept and maintained in good condition, order, and repair so that the same shall not menace or endanger the life or property of any person.
- D. All maintenance or construction of towers, telecommunications facilities, or antenna support structures shall be performed by licensed contractor.
- E. All towers shall maintain compliance with current RF emission standards of the FCC.
- F. In the event that the use of a tower is discontinued by the tower owner, the tower owner shall provide written notice to the city of its intent to discontinue use and the date when the use shall be discontinued.

17.78.085 - Modification of development standards.

- A. Notwithstanding the tower requirements provided in this chapter, a modification to the development standards may be approved by the planning commission as an unclassified use in accordance with the following:
 - 1. In addition to the requirement for a tower application, the application for modification shall include the following:
 - a. A description of how the proposed plan addresses any adverse impact that might occur as a result of approving the modification;
 - b. A description of off-site or on-site factors which mitigate any adverse impacts which might occur as a result of the proposed modification;
 - c. A technical study that documents and supports the applicant's need (criteria submitted by the applicant) upon which the request for modification is based. The technical study shall be certified by an engineer and shall document the existence of the facts related to the proposed modifications and its relationship to surrounding rights-of-way and properties;
 - d. For a modification of the setback requirement, the application shall identify all parcels of land where the proposed tower could be located, attempts by the applicant to contract and negotiate an agreement for co-location, and the result of such attempts;
 - e. The planning department may require the application to be reviewed by a qualified, independent engineer under contract to the city to determine whether the antenna study supports the basis for the modification requested. The cost of review by the engineer shall be reimbursed to the city by the applicant.

- 2. The planning commission shall consider the application for modification based on the following criteria:
 - a. That the tower as modified will be compatible with and not adversely impact public health and safety of surrounding areas;
 - b. Off-site or on-site conditions exist which mitigate the adverse impacts, if any, created by the modification;
 - c. In addition, the planning commission may include conditions on the site where the tower is to be located if such conditions are necessary to mitigate any adverse impacts which arise in connection with the approval of the modification.
- B. In addition to the requirements of subsection A of this section, in the following cases, the applicant must also demonstrate, with written evidence, the following:
 - 1. In the case of a requested modification to the setback requirement. Section 17.78.030 WSMC, that the setback requirement cannot be met on the parcel of land upon which the tower is proposed to be located and the alternative for the applicant is to locate the tower at another site which is closer in proximity to a residentially zoned land or land that is more visually sensitive.
 - 2. In the case of a request for modification of the separation and buffer requirements of Section 17.78.040 WSMC, that written technical evidence from an engineer(s) demonstrates that the proposed tower must be located at the proposed site in order to meet the coverage requirements of the applicant's wireless communications system, and that the applicant is willing to create approved landscaping and other buffers to screen the tower.
 - 3. In the case of a request for modification of the height limit for towers or to the minimum height requirements for antenna support structures, that the modification is necessary to: (a) facilitate co-location of telecommunications facilities in order to avoid construction of a new tower; or (b) to meet the coverage requirements of the applicant's wireless communications system, which requirements must be documented with written, technical evidence from an engineer(s) that demonstrates that the height of the proposed tower is the minimum height required to function satisfactorily, and no tower that is taller than one hundred twenty feet shall be approved in any case.

17.78.090 - Abandonment.

A. If any tower shall cease to be used for a period of one hundred eighty consecutive days, the planning department shall notify the owner, with a copy to the applicant, that the site will be subject to a determination by the planning commission that such site has been

abandoned. The owner shall have thirty days from receipt of said notice to show, by a preponderance of the evidence that the tower has been in use or under repair during the period. If the owner fails to show that the tower has been in use or under repair during the period, the city council shall issue a final determination of abandonment for the site. Upon issuance of the final determination of abandonment, the owner shall, within seventy-five days, dismantle and remove the tower.

B. To secure the obligation set forth in this section, the applicant (and/or owner) shall post a performance bond for the purpose of ensuring adequate removal of the tower upon termination of its use. The performance bond shall be equal to or greater than one hundred fifty percent of the estimated cost of removal of the tower, but not less than five thousand dollars. Proof of performance bonds shall be submitted prior to final permit approval.

17.78.095 - Temporary wireless service facility.

The use of a temporary wireless service facility may be permitted by the city. A temporary wireless service facility is the use of equipment such as a COW or an antenna on a bucket truck, crane, or other device capable of reaching the height necessary to evaluate the site for placement of a personal wireless facility. Such temporary facility may only be utilized in nonresidential areas of the city for a period not to exceed thirty days, or in residential areas for a period not to exceed one day for the purpose of evaluating the technical feasibility of a particular location for placement of a personal wireless facility or for providing communications during an emergency.

17.78.100 - Definitions.

General. Words and terms in this section are included because of special or particular meanings as they are used in these regulations. The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning.

"Antenna" means any pole, panel, rod, reflection disc including satellite earth station antenna as defined by 47 CFR Sections 1.4000 and 25.104, or similar device used for the transmission and/or reception of radio frequency signals.

"Antenna support structure" means any building or structure other than a tower which can be used for location of telecommunications facilities.

"Applicant" means any person that applies for approval from the city.

"Application" means the process by which the owner of a parcel of land within the city submits a request to develop, construct, build, modify, erect or use such parcel of land. "Application" includes all written documentation, verbal statements, and representations, in whatever form or forum, made by an applicant to the city concerning such a request.

"Low-powered, networked telecommunications facilities" means those facilities with maximum transmitter peak output power that do not exceed one watt and are less than fourteen inches by sixteen inches by eight inches with an antenna no greater than thirty inches.

"Stealth" means relating to siting strategies and technological innovations designed to enhance compatibility with adjacent land uses by designing structures to resemble other features in the surrounding environment. "Stealth" techniques include architecturally screened roof-mounted antennas, antennas integrated into architectural elements, and towers designed to resemble light poles, power poles, flag poles, street standards, steeples, or trees, etc.

"Street right-of-way line" means the boundary line between a street and abutting property.

"Structure" means anything constructed in the ground, or anything erected which requires location on the ground or water, or is attached to something having location on or in the ground or water, but not including fences or walls used as fences six feet or less in height.

"Telecommunications facilities or wireless telecommunications facilities" means any antennas, cables, wires, lines, wave guides, and any other equipment or facilities associated with the transmission or reception of communications which a person seeks to locate or has installed upon or near a tower or antenna support structure.

"Tower or wireless telecommunications tower" means a self-supporting lattice, guyed, or monopole structure constructed from grade which supports telecommunications facilities. The term "tower" shall not include amateur radio operators' equipment, as licensed by the FCC.

17.78.110 - Severability.

That if any clause, section, or other part of this chapter shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this chapter shall not be affected thereby, but shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 2: EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective five days after publication as provided by law.

SECTION 3: SEVERABILITY

If any part of this ordinance is declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid for any reason, the remaining provisions shall be construed to be effective after removing the objectionable provision(s).

Passed by the Council and approved by the	e Mayor on this, 202	Э.
	ATTEST:	
Marla Keethler, Mayor	Jan Brending, Clerk Treasurer	_

Ordinance 2020 Amending WSMC 17.78 Wireless Telecommunications Towers and Facilities Page 16

APPROVED	AC TO	EODM.
APPROVED	ASIO	FOR WI

Kenneth B. Woodrich, City Attorney